
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
Acrobat 9 or Adobe Reader 9, or later.

Get Adobe Reader Now!

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




 


 


 
Christiansburg Planning Commission 


 Minutes of August 27, 2012 
 
Present: Ann H. Carter 
  Harry Collins 
  M. H. Dorsett, AICP 
  Steve Huppert  
  Craig Moore, Chairperson 
  Ashley Parsons 
  Joe Powers, Vice-Chairperson 
  Jennifer D. Sowers 
  Nichole Hair, Secretary Non-Voting 
 
Absent: Barry Akers 
   
Staff/Visitors: Kali Casper, staff 


 Gary Cope, 414 Miller Street 
 


Chairperson Moore called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m. in the Christiansburg Town 
Hall at 100 E. Main Street, Christiansburg, Virginia to discuss the following items: 
 
Public Comment. 
 


Chairperson Moore opened the floor for public comment.  Mr. Gary Cope of 414 
Miller Street noted he previously came to speak about the horses at the end of Miller 
Street.  Since the last meeting, there are now five horses on the property.  He added 
the manure bags are stacked along the fence and the fence has been extended.  He 
has researched zoning requirements for Montgomery County in R-1 and R-2 and the 
County requires five acre lots to keep horses.  Mr. Cope added Montgomery County 
allows two horses per 5 acres (or ponies) with a maximum of 4 horses per 10 acres.  
Mr. Cope is not sure what is allowed within the sixty day grace period, but there has 
been a complete disregard for the wishes of any of the neighbors.  Some of the 
neighbors do not want to sign anything because they do not feel safe but with the 
addition of new horses they are willing to sign.  Mr. Cope added it is possible to 
make a case for two horses but five is too many.   Mr. Cope stated he and his wife 
moved to an area that is residential and the Town has an obligation to uphold this 
requirement.  Commissioner Powers asked Commissioner Huppert about Town 
Council being contacted.  Commissioner Huppert noted he was at Miller Street last 
week and asked about people being willing to sign a statement.  Mr. Cope 
responded people are willing to call but they do not want to sign anything that is 
public record, which the Walkers’ could access.  He added that some neighbors 
have already signed against the horses.  Commissioner Huppert noted the issues of 
horses would also be discussed at the Town Council meeting.  Ms. Hair stated 
September 10 is the Planning Commission public hearing and it would go to Town 
Council two to four weeks after that.  Mr. Cope stated the grace period is sixty days 
which would run out at the end of the month.  Commissioner Huppert suggested that 
Mr. Cope be aware of the next Town Council meeting date.   







August 27, 2012 Page 2 


 


Public Comment – (continued). 
 
Ms. Hair responded the Town Council date depends on the Planning Commission 
process and repeated the Planning Commission public hearing will be held 
September 10th.  Ms. Hair added that a recommendation would be made two weeks 
following the public hearing unless the Planning Commission wanted to take action 
that night.  She continued that it would take two weeks following the 
recommendation to advertise for Town Council.  Ms. Hair noted that Mr. Cope is 
welcome to attend Town Council at any point to address this issue.  Chairperson 
Moore added that the grace period seemed to have some leeway based on the 
Planning Commission process.  Commissioner Carter noted Town Council could 
extend the grace period if they desired.  Commissioner Dorsett asked if staff has 
recently visited the property.  Ms. Hair stated she has not been back to the property 
since the addition of the extra horses.  Ms. Hair added the property was checked for 
the fence when the fence permit was applied for.  She stated that with two horses, 
the site appeared in acceptable condition but is not sure with the additional horses.  
She added staff will return to the site and take photos and investigate the situation.  
Commissioner Collins asked about the size of the lot.  Mr. Cope responded 0.45 
acres.  Ms. Hair confirmed just shy of half an acre.  Mr. Cope added there is a house 
and driveway on the 0.45 acres as well.  Chairperson Moore closed the public 
comment session.   
 


Approval of meeting minutes for August 13, 2012. 
 
Chairperson Moore introduced the discussion.  Commissioner Dorsett made a 
motion to approve the August 13, 2012 meeting minutes.  Commissioner Sowers 
seconded the motion which passed 6-0 with Chairperson Moore and Commissioner 
Collins abstaining. 


 
Discussion of proposed changes to Chapter 28 “Subdivisions” and Chapter 30 “Zoning” 
of the Christiansburg Town Code in regards to amateur radio antennas and 
communication structures, planned housing developments, and traffic impact analysis 
requirements.  
 


Chairperson Moore introduced the discussion.  Ms. Hair noted the change in parking 
requirements to a 16’ X 18’ area for single family homes to ensure two non-stacked 
spaces and two-family homes will keep the same requirement of two per dwelling 
unit.  Commissioner Powers stated this recommendation came from staff.  Ms. Hair 
confirmed this and noted there have been some issues with developers not meeting 
the minimum in Town Code for driveway areas and from citizen complaints of having 
to stack parking or park on the street.  Commissioner Powers noted that this does 
not really change the requirement but rather clarifies it.  Chairperson Moore stated it 
makes it easier to enforce and understand.  Ms. Hair responded yes.   
 
Ms. Hair noted the change to amateur radio tower requirements with the addition of 
stealth appearance and changed wording for licensed professional to include 
surveyor, engineer, or other professional.   







August 27, 2012 Page 3 


 


Discussion of proposed changes to Chapter 28 “Subdivisions” and Chapter 30 “Zoning” 
of the Christiansburg Town Code in regards to amateur radio antennas and 
communication structures, planned housing developments, and traffic impact analysis 
requirements – (continued). 


 
She added the setback requirement has been changed to state tower guys and 
wires must meet the minimum district setback but the tower setback must be one 
foot for every foot in height.   
 
Chairperson Moore noted the previous concern of cost for a licensed professional 
and asked what structural calculations are being looked at by the building official. 
Ms. Hair noted footers should be structurally designed as they would be for a sign 
permit.  She added footer drawings are required for signage.  Chairperson Moore 
noted other professionals could do site drawing but structural design for footer would 
need to be done by a professional engineer.  Ms. Hair added that footer drawings 
may be available from the companies.  Commissioner Powers stated the 
requirement for footers is already in the building code and the only requirement 
being added is the site plan to assist with setbacks.   
 
Ms. Hair noted changes to urban agriculture which will incorporate horses into the R-
1 and R-2 districts.  She highlighted the change which allows 1 horse per 4,000 
square feet of pasture with 10 foot setback from all property lines and no closer to 
the street right-of-way than the primary dwelling.  Ms. Hair noted Mr. Walker does 
not agree with the setback requirement and would like to see either a 5 foot setback 
or allowing for waivers from neighbors to allow the fenced pasture up to the 
adjoining property line.  Ms. Hair noted this may be due to the fact that his fence is 
already built and would have to be moved if the requirements were approved.  
Commissioner Dorsett asked if ponies, pygmy horses and other subsets of horse are 
included in this.  Ms. Hair responded that it is not broken out, just one horse.  
Commissioner Dorsett asked if the Town has had anything about little goats.  Ms. 
Hair responded that pygmy goats are considered a domesticated animal but require 
a Conditional Use Permit in the residential districts.  She added this requires a 
zoning permit which is enforced by the Planning and Zoning Department.  
Commissioner Dorsett asked if pygmy horses would be covered under horse.  Ms. 
Hair responded yes and they would be required to submit a packet with a site 
drawing showing location of pasture, setbacks, waste management plan, where feed 
and bedding will be stored so they will not become hazardous to the neighbors.  
Commissioner Collins asked why Mr. Walker thought they could have horses at this 
location.  Ms. Hair noted that previously the neighborhood had horses even so they 
were under the impression horses were allowed and did not ask the Town.  Ms. Hair 
noted the three new horses are rescued horses and will be moved.  Commissioner 
Parsons asked if they will continue to rescue horses.  Ms. Hair responded she would 
ask that as well.  Commissioner Carter noted that his mother previously had horses 
and if she had continued, these horses would have been grandfathered in.  
Commissioner Powers responded that one horse would have been grandfathered.  
Commissioner Carter added that they did not check with the Town and they should 
have but they did assume for that reason.   







August 27, 2012 Page 4 


 


Discussion of proposed changes to Chapter 28 “Subdivisions” and Chapter 30 “Zoning” 
of the Christiansburg Town Code in regards to amateur radio antennas and 
communication structures, planned housing developments, and traffic impact analysis 
requirements – (continued). 


 
Commissioner Carter asked about the fence setback and added that it would require 
putting an additional fence 10 feet inward.  Ms. Hair noted you could have one fence 
10 feet off the property line.  Ms. Hair stated during the Development Subcommittee 
meeting it was considered horses could reach onto neighboring properties over a 
fence and take plants or vegetation.  Commissioner Dorsett added runoff is also a 
consideration for fencing setback.  Commissioner Carter responded she is noting 
that this is a different setback for fencing than used elsewhere in Town Code.  
Chairperson Moore asked about which Zoning Districts this would apply to.  Ms. Hair 
stated R-1 and R-2.  Chairperson Moore asked about a limit on the total number of 
horses.  Ms. Hair noted that there is a limit in the next section.   
 
Commissioner Parsons asked how many acres is 4,000 square feet.  Commissioner 
Dorsett responded that it is roughly 1/10th of an acre.  Commissioner Parsons noted 
the requirement is very different than Montgomery County and asked about 
reasoning for this choice.  Ms. Hair stated this was proposed previously with the last 
urban agriculture update.  She added that Roanoke City allows horses, 1 per 2 acres 
and that Blacksburg does not allow horses.  Commissioner Parsons asked if there 
will be a cap on the total number of horses.  Ms. Hair stated that it has not been 
drafted but it can be added after the public hearing.  Commissioner Parsons stated 
under the current draft, residents could have 4 horses.  Ms. Hair responded 4 per 
acre.  Commissioner Huppert asked why Montgomery County’s standard was not 
used.  Commissioner Powers responded that it could be done but then this property 
would be specifically excluded.  Commissioner Sowers noted it is only the pasture 
area that is included in the 4,000 square feet.   
 
Commissioner Collins asked about Montgomery County standards.  Ms. Hair 
responded it is 2 horses per 5 acres with a maximum of 4 horses per 10 acres.  
Commissioner Powers noted that is for residential areas and that most of the County 
is zoned as Agriculture.  He added many of the lots are 5 acres and specifically this 
addressed Woodland Hills which has 5 acre lots.  
 
Commissioner Parsons asked about limitations in the Agriculture and R-1A districts.  
Ms. Hair noted that currently those districts do not have limitations on the number of 
horses but have drafted the standard of 1 horse per 4,000 square feet of enclosed 
pasture with existing horses being grandfathered in.  Commissioner Parsons 
suggested a difference in allowable number for different zones particularly with 
tighter density.  Chairperson Moore suggested 1 horse per 4,000 square feet with a 
maximum of 2 horses per 1 acre.  Commissioner Collins asked how properties 
would be grandfathered.  Ms. Hair responded she is aware of one property on 
Gobbler Spur with horses but there are more, not many though.  Commissioner 
Collins asked if people who have acquired horses without permission are 
grandfathered.   







August 27, 2012 Page 5 


 


Discussion of proposed changes to Chapter 28 “Subdivisions” and Chapter 30 “Zoning” 
of the Christiansburg Town Code in regards to amateur radio antennas and 
communication structures, planned housing developments, and traffic impact analysis 
requirements – (continued). 


 
Ms. Hair responded no and she is not aware of any other locations with that 
situation.  She added the Town was aware of Mr. Walker’s horses as soon as they 
arrived and he is not grandfathered.  Commissioner Powers asked how long ago his 
mother had horses on the property.  Ms. Hair responded more than two years.   
 
Commissioner Parsons asked about where the 1 horse per 4,000 square feet 
standard came from.  Ms. Hair responded it was discussed with the previous urban 
agriculture revision.  Commissioner Parsons suggested a different standard of space 
for horses than bees or chickens.  Chairperson Moore responded that was when the 
research was done on horses.  Ms. Hair asked if Planning Commission wants a two 
horse cap per property.  Commissioner Parsons and Chairperson Moore indicated 
yes.  Commissioner Carter asked about larger lots being allowed more horses.  
Commissioner Powers asked about what areas of Town are R-1 and R-2 districts 
with larger lots.  Commissioner Dorsett stated 4,000 square feet seems small.  
Commissioner Parsons agreed.  Commissioner Dorsett used an example to show 
that the lot size is not big enough to keep horses.  Commissioner Dorsett requested 
changing the minimum to 10,000 square feet.  Commissioner Collins asked about 
capping it at 2 horses per 1 acre.  Chairperson Moore asked about 2 horses per 1 
acre or 2 horses per property.  Commissioner Parsons indicated 2 horses per 
property.  Commissioner Carter noted an issue with 2 horses per property because it 
does not define the acreage.  Commissioner Powers responded 2 horses per acre 
will usually result in 2 horses per property in practice.  Ms. Hair stated most R-1 lots 
are 10,000 square feet for development.  Commissioner Dorsett indicated some lots 
in the Park District might be large enough for horses.  Chairperson Moore noted 
rescued horses may not need as much space.   
 
Chairperson Moore stated the Planning Commission would like to consider 1 horse 
per 10,000 square feet and no more than 2 horses per 1 acre.  Commissioner 
Sowers asked about banning horses Town wide instead since almost all parcels in 
R-1 and R-2 will be excluded with the size requirement.  She added some parcels 
would be grandfathered.  Commissioner Carter agreed.  Commissioner Sowers 
added this would prevent future attempts to have horses in Town.  Commissioner 
Collins stated when residents buy houses in R-1, they expect a neighborhood not a 
farm.  Commissioner Sowers suggested banning horses and being done with the 
issue.  Commissioner Collins suggested it would be easier to do so and easier on 
staff.  Commissioner Powers suggested the issue should be taken to public hearing.  
Commissioner Huppert noted a ban would be clear cut.  Commissioner Parsons 
asked whether horses would be allowed in Agriculture and R-1A.  Ms. Hair indicated 
those districts would not be affected.  Commissioner Parsons noted horses would 
still be allowed in some locations.  Commissioner Dorsett asked about pygmy horses 
since a neighbor would like to have one.  Ms. Hair explained the allowance of pygmy 
goats required a Code change; one location in Town does have pygmy goats.  
Commissioner Dorsett suggested treating pygmy horses the same as pygmy goats.   







August 27, 2012 Page 6 


 


 
Discussion of proposed changes to Chapter 28 “Subdivisions” and Chapter 30 “Zoning” 
of the Christiansburg Town Code in regards to amateur radio antennas and 
communication structures, planned housing developments, and traffic impact analysis 
requirements – (continued). 


 
Chairperson Moore clarified originally there was a ban on all goats and a Code 
change was requested to allow pygmy goats.  Ms. Hair confirmed it.  Chairperson 
Moore asked if Planning Commission would like to allow pygmy horses.  
Commissioner Dorsett responded that she recommended the neighbor speak with 
the Planning Department first.  Chairperson Moore stated all horses would be 
prohibited in Town with the exception of in the Agriculture and R-1A districts.  
Commissioner Powers added the Planning Commission could recommend including 
all types of horses so staff could refer to it in the future.   
 
Commissioner Carter suggested considering the issue since Council did allow for a 
grace period.  Commissioner Powers suggested adjusting the draft after the public 
hearing.  Commissioner Huppert stated Town Council does not want to string this 
along forever.  Chairperson Moore asked if this should be modified prior to public 
hearing.  Commissioner Parsons responded she wants to see no horses be allowed 
except for R-1A and Agriculture districts.  Commissioner Powers noted if all the 
language is removed prior to public hearing, it only allows for one choice.  Ms. Hair 
suggested leaving it as is and then make changes after public hearing since it has 
been advertised.  Commissioner Powers noted the horses can be separated from 
the telecommunications and the traffic impact analysis.  Ms. Hair noted a motion 
after the public hearing could be made to recommend certain changes.   
 
Commissioner Dorsett stated that the square footage needs to be changed from 
4,000 to 10,000.  Commissioner Collins asked about changing it to zero instead.  
Commissioner Dorsett responded that changing it to zero does not allow for a 
choice.  Commissioner Carter suggested revising to 1 horse per 8,000 square feet or 
2 horses per acre.  Commissioner Dorsett suggested revising the acreage in case 
Town Council would like to move forward.  Commissioner Powers repeated 
Commissioner Carter’s suggestion for revision.  Chairperson Moore suggested there 
be an option on horses at the public hearing.  He added that revisions can be made 
after the public hearing.  Commissioner Huppert asked if this is teasing the public.  
Commissioner Moore responded no unless you have a preconceived notion of how 
you will vote.  He added the public hearing can change your vote.  Commissioner 
Carter stated it is not fair to vote before the public hearing.  Commissioner Collins 
asked about whether Blacksburg has had issues with horses.  
 
Commissioner Dorsett responded Blacksburg does not allow horses.  Ms. Hair 
responded she is not aware of any issues and recalls Radford City has had issues 
with chickens and goats.  Commissioner Collins asked whether Radford allows 
horses.  Ms. Hair responded she is not sure but they do allow chicken and goats 
with a recent urban agriculture ordinance.  Commissioner Sowers noted Radford has 
very small lot sizes so houses are generally situated on 3 or 4 lots.   
 







August 27, 2012 Page 7 


 


 
Discussion of proposed changes to Chapter 28 “Subdivisions” and Chapter 30 “Zoning” 
of the Christiansburg Town Code in regards to amateur radio antennas and 
communication structures, planned housing developments, and traffic impact analysis 
requirements – (continued). 


 
Chairperson Moore asked about revising to 1 horse per 8,000 square feet with a 
max of 2 horses per 1 acre.   
 
Ms. Hair noted the next revision is for R-1A to allow 1 horse per 4,000 square feet 
for enclosures and will also change it to 1 horse per 8,000 square feet.  Chairperson 
Moore suggested allowing more horses in an agricultural zone, possibly 3 per acre.  
Commissioner Parsons agreed there should be some difference.  Commissioner 
Powers asked about locations of R-1A.  Commissioner Sowers stated there is R-1A 
on Gobbler Spur, Diamond Pointe, and a little portion off of Peppers Ferry Road.  
Ms. Hair noted Stafford Drive does have horses.  Commissioner Sowers added at 
least one location in Diamond Pointe has horses.  Ms. Hair asked about size 
requirements for fenced pasture area in the R-1A district.  Commissioner Dorsett 
asked if a limit is necessary for R-1A.  Commissioner Powers responded that a 
maximum density is good.  Chairperson Moore asked about 8,000 square feet for 
enclosures.  Commissioner Dorsett stated a 4,000 square foot enclosure would 
allow for 16 horses on 4 acres.  Commissioner Powers noted under current 
regulations, a person could have 100 horses on a 4 acre lot.  Commissioner Dorsett 
asked if that would fall under the intensive agriculture listing.  Chairperson Moore 
asked about enclosures of 8,000 square feet and stated leave as 4,000 square feet 
until public hearing.  He asked if the area is total property area or enclosure area.  
Ms. Hair stated the requirement would address fenced pasture.  Commissioner 
Collins asked about Mr. Walker’s property.  Ms. Hair stated possibly one horse on 
the property.  Commissioner Parsons stated there will still be a zoning permit with 
enforcement.  Ms. Hair added the setbacks for the fenced pasture would have to be 
met.  
 
Ms. Hair will see about making changes since the revisions have already been 
advertised.  Chairperson Moore stated the changes can be made after the public 
hearing.  He asked about breaking out portions of the revisions for easier motions.  
Ms. Hair noted it was advertised as one ordinance.  Commissioner Powers 
suggested breaking one ordinance down into multiple resolutions.  He added it 
would be helpful to have sections divided.  Commissioner Dorsett asked about 
suggested motion phrasing.  Commissioner Powers asked about the possibility of 
voting the same night as the public hearing.  Ms. Hair responded that it could be 
done.  Chairperson Moore suggested that Planning Commission come prepared to 
vote unless someone recommends tabling the issue.  Commissioner Powers asked 
if Commissioner Carter is comfortable with that plan.  Commissioner Carter stated it 
will depend on the public hearing but is willing to consider voting the same night.  
Chairperson Moore stated the subcommittee meetings allows for more information to 
be presented to full planning commission.   
 







August 27, 2012 Page 8 


 


Discussion of proposed changes to Chapter 28 “Subdivisions” and Chapter 30 “Zoning” 
of the Christiansburg Town Code in regards to amateur radio antennas and 
communication structures, planned housing developments, and traffic impact analysis 
requirements – (continued). 


 
Commissioner Dorsett asked about possibility of slideshow with picture of the 
specific property that the request has stemmed from.  Chairperson Moore noted the 
ordinance will apply to the whole Town.  Ms. Hair will bring an update on the specific 
situation at the property for the grace period.  Chairperson Moore asked about 
information for how many R-1A lots and what size within Town.  Ms. Hair responded 
yes.  Commissioner Dorsett rescinded her request.   
 
Commissioner Collins stated 1 horse per 8,000 square feet or 2 horses per acre may 
open the door to other requests whereas zero allowance solves the problem.  
Chairperson Moore noted the current Code right now it is zero.  Commissioner 
Carter noted the process is the same for chickens where Planning commission 
listened and then voted.  Commissioner Parsons stated there is a difference 
between doing and then asking versus asking, getting approval, and then doing.  
Commissioner Carter responded that the Walkers moved here and the mother told 
them it was allowed and that they were not blatantly disobeying the rules.  
Commissioner Parsons stated that she does not want the planning commission to 
look as though it can be bullied into approving anything.  Commissioner Carter 
agreed she does not want to make up mind prior to public hearing because that was 
a perceived problem in the past.  Chairperson Moore noted originally chickens were 
brought up in the same manner and followed a specific process in evaluation.  
Commissioner Sowers noted the decision is not quick and the issue has been 
studied for weeks.  She added hopefully the public would be aware of the process.  
Commissioner Carter stated that is why she does not want to vote prior to the public 
hearing.  Commissioner Dorsett added the Planning Commission is not allowed to 
vote prior to the public hearing.   
 


Other Business. 
 
Commissioner Parsons stated she finished the Commissioner Certification Program 
on Friday.  She added the Planning Commission operates under Robert’s Rules for 
conducting these meetings but noted that within Robert’s Rules, small groups have 
different rules.  She noted with small groups, a second is not required, motions 
cannot die and only one person has to propose an idea to vote on it.  Chairperson 
Moore asked if this referred to the subcommittees.  Commissioner Parsons 
responded that a small group can have 11 to 21 people so the Planning Commission 
falls under that category.  Commissioner Powers noted the Planning Commission 
adopted bylaws that include quorum size and how to pass a motion.  He added the 
bylaws take precedent over Robert’s Rules.  Commissioner Dorsett noted the public 
perception is that there will be first and second for motions and doing away with the 
process can be a problem.  Commissioner Parsons stated she wanted to share the 
issue since the Planning Commission has had motions die.  Commissioner Carter 
noted the Planning Commission has bylaws and officially Robert’s Rules of Order 
have not been adopted.    







August 27, 2012 Page 9 


 


 
There being no more business Chairperson Moore adjourned the meeting at 7:54 p.m. 
 
 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
Craig Moore, Chairperson    Nichole Hair, Secretary Non-Voting 








Memo 
 
TO: Mayor Ballengee and Members of Christiansburg Town Council 
FROM: Becky Wilburn, Director of Human Resources & Public Relations 
DATE: August 31, 2012 
RE: Background Check Ordinance and Related Personnel Handbook Amendment  
 
 
Attached please find a proposed ordinance that authorizes the Town of Christiansburg to gain consent 
and perform criminal background checks on certain prospective employees and volunteers.  Approval 
of this ordinance ensures the Town is in compliance with existing Virginia law, which requires that 
localities have such an ordinance in place in order to conduct these checks as a condition of 
employment.   
 
Related to this proposed ordinance, an amendment to the Town’s personnel handbook regarding 
criminal background checks is also requested. 
 
The personnel handbook currently states (in-part) on p. 22: 
 


Criminal Background Checks Performed 
 
The Town of Christiansburg performs pre-employment criminal background checks 
on all conditionally-hired employees and volunteers in accordance with the Code of 
Virginia.  Candidates for employment and/or volunteer openings with the 
Christiansburg Parks & Recreation Department and Christiansburg Aquatics 
Department will be screened nationally for criminal convictions (including probation 
pursuant to Virginia Code § 18.2-251) including but not limited to barrier crimes 
subsequent to § 63.2-1719 pertinent to responsibilities of providing care, protection 
and guidance for children, the handicapped, or the elderly.  Candidates for 
employment for all other departments shall be screened by the Christiansburg Police 
Department. 


 
 
 
The proposed amendment to the personnel handbook would read as follows: 
 


Criminal Background Checks Performed 
 


The Town of Christiansburg performs pre-employment criminal background checks 
on all applicants for employment and/or volunteer positions, either upon identification 
as a finalist in the personnel selection and placement process or upon offer of 
employment with the town, as determined by the town manager or his/her designee, 
and in accordance with the Code of Virginia and Christiansburg Town Code.   
 







Candidates for employment and/or volunteer openings with the Christiansburg Parks 
& Recreation Department, Christiansburg Aquatics Department, Christiansburg Police 
Department, Christiansburg Rescue Squad, or for any additional applicable positions 
identified by the town manager which affect public welfare and safety, shall 
specifically be screened nationally for criminal convictions (including probation 
pursuant to Virginia Code § 18.2-251) including but not limited to barrier crimes 
pursuant to § 63.2-1719 pertinent to responsibilities of providing care, protection and 
guidance for children, the handicapped, or the elderly. 
 
Additionally, Town employees are required to promptly notify the human resource 
department upon notice that the employee is the subject of a criminal investigation by 
law enforcement or a child protective services investigation by any department of 
social services. 


 
 
At this time, there are no proposed changes to the remaining information listed under “Criminal 
Background Checks Performed” that explains how the applicability of criminal convictions is 
determined. 
 
Thank you in advance for your time and consideration. 
 








Public Works Citizen Academy Tour 
9-6-2012 


 


Interesting Facts 


1. The current PW Facility on Scattergood Drive was formerly one of the Town’s two Waste 
Water Treatment Plants, hence the name “Station B” The other plant was named 
“Station A” before being nicknamed “Peanuts” after a long tenured town employee. It 
was located where the current skate park is today. 
 


2. Snow Removal- We have 13 Dump trucks, 5 pickup trucks, 2 tractors and 2 front end 
loaders staffed by 35 Employees (each shift) during a snowfall event. 110 tons (Average) 
of salt is needed to treat all the streets in town once. 
 


3. Solid Waste (Garbage) - We collect around 650 Tons of Solid Waste each month, with 
landfill expenses around $33,000 monthly. This services 6100 households and 200 
Business. 
 


4. Water Line Maintenance- We average around 30-40 repairs annually. Weather related 
fractures typically break in a way that appears to be sawed. Field employees have 
coined the term “Clean Break” as a result and it is the preferred type of fracture. 
 


5. Leaf Removal- We collect around 437 Tons of leaves annually and all are recycled as 
compost at a location in the Floyd area (unless they are full and we have to haul to the 
landfill). 
 


6. Construction- Our Public Works Department is unique because we design and build 
many of our own Capital Improvement Projects (Excavation, water, sewer, storm water, 
electrical…) 
 


7. Water Tanks- We maintain 6 Water Storage Tanks that range from 100,000 gallons to 
1.5 million gallons.  
 


8. Water Pump Stations- We maintain 1 station that services 3 Tanks; Hills Tank, Hubbell 
Tank, and Camp Christi Tank (PSA). The other two Stations service residential areas; 
Edgewood, and Craig Mountain. 
 


9. Water Meters- We maintain 9,900 to 10,000 Water Meters that provide service to 
homeowners, business owners, contractors, irrigation…. 
 


10. Sewage Pump Stations- We maintain 18 stations that service areas all over Town. 
Combined with gravity sewage flows, the Town processes around 2.4 million gallons of 
sewage daily at its Waste Water Treatment Plant (Crab Creek Location). 
 


11. Manholes- We have approximately 4,207 manholes that provide access to sewer lines in 
which allow us to address stoppages, and also prevent the system from creating a 
vacuum effect.  
 


12. Landscaping- We mow approximately 75 acres of grass  in right of ways, ponds, and 
fields in addition to other landscaping tasks such as tree trimming, mulching, planting 
annual flowers, and maintaining perennial flowers and maintaining downtown with 
hanging baskets and flower boxes. 
 


13. Mechanic Shop- We maintain approximately 80-90 Vehicles and over 25 pieces of 
Equipment! 
 


14. The United States has approximately 19,400 municipalities of varying sizes.   








Ord. 2012-__ 


DRAFT 
 


AN ORDINANCE TO ENACT SECTION 2-100, CRIMINAL BACKGROUND 
CHECKS OF APPLICANTS FOR TOWN EMPLOYMENT, OF ARTICLE III, 
OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES, CHAPTER 2, ADMINISTRATION, OF THE 


CHRISTIANSBURG TOWN CODE; PROVIDING FOR CRIMINAL 
BACKGROUND CHECKS FOR PROSPECTIVE EMPLOYEES OF THE TOWN 


OF CHRISTIANSBURG; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE  
  
WHEREAS, in the interest of public health and safety, the Town of Christiansburg 
requires criminal background checks for prospective employees; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town desires to update and codify its policy concerning same; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
CHRISTIANSBURG, VIRGINIA that it hereby enacts Section 2-100, Criminal 
background checks of applicants for town employment, of Article III, Officers and 
Employees, Chapter 2, Administration, as follows: 
 
Sec-2-100. - Criminal background checks of applicants for town employment.  


(a) In order to determine whether, in the interest of public welfare and safety, an 
applicant for public employment or a volunteer position may be disqualified from such 
position by reason of a criminal record, the applicant, either upon identification as a 
finalist in the personnel selection and placement process or upon offer of employment 
with the town, as determined by the town manager or his/her designee, shall be required 
to provide personal descriptive information and to submit to a criminal background 
check. The applicant will not be required to pay the cost of the criminal records check.  


(b) The criminal history record information regarding such applicant may be obtained 
through the central criminal records exchange or other appropriate qualified private 
source and may include the following: Employment records/employee references; 
criminal background records/ information; criminal background check/fingerprint; 
driver's license check; automobile insurance check; Social Services central registry 
check; training/experience check; personal references and addresses.  


(c) Town employees are required to promptly notify the human resource department 
upon notice that the employee is the subject of a criminal investigation by law 
enforcement or a child protective services investigation by any department of social 
services.  


(d) The criminal history record information provided in accordance with this section 
shall be used solely to assess eligibility for public employment or service, and shall not 
be disseminated to any person not involved in the assessment process. If an applicant is 
denied employment because of information appearing in his or her criminal record 
history, the town manager or his/her designee shall notify the applicant in writing that 
information from the Virginia Central Criminal Records Exchange or other appropriate 
qualified private source contributed to such denial.  Additionally, the applicant shall be 







Ord. 2012-__ 


provided a copy of the criminal history record, a copy of his or her rights under the Fair 
Credit Reporting Act, as well as the name, address, and phone number for the agency that 
provided the information should the applicant desire to contest the contents of his or her 
criminal history record information.   
   
 
___________________ 
This ordinance shall become effective upon adoption.  If any part of this ordinance is 
deemed unlawful by a court of competent jurisdiction all remaining parts shall be deemed 
valid.  
 


Upon a call for an aye and nay vote on the foregoing ordinance at a regular 
meeting of the Council of the Town of Christiansburg, Virginia held September 4, 2012, 
the members of the Council of the Town of Christiansburg, Virginia present throughout 
all deliberations on the foregoing and voting or abstaining, stood as indicated opposite 
their names as follows: 


 
    Aye  Nay  Abstain 
 Absent 
 
Mayor Richard G. Ballengee* 
 
D. Michael Barber     
 
Cord Hall      
 
Steve Huppert      


 
Henry Showalter     
 
Bradford J. Stipes     
 
James W. “Jim” Vanhoozier    
 
*Votes only in the event of a tie vote by Council. 


 


 
SEAL: 
 
 
__________________________   ______________________________ 
Michele M. Stipes, Town Clerk   Richard G. Ballengee, Mayor 
 





